Request for Applications (RFA) for Construction Pre-Apprenticeship and Support Services
Workforce Intermediary Program
Questions & Answers


This document is intended to serve as a “Question & Answer” document for prospective applicants under the RFA for DC Workforce Intermediary – Construction Pre-Apprenticeship and Support Services.

The document responds to written questions submitted electronically by prospective applicants prior to 4PM on July 10, 2014, the deadline set forth in the RFA; as well as questions raised during the informational session on July 9, 2014.


General Questions (not specific a RFA section)
QG.1:  Have any grants been awarded in the past for similar grants?  If so, then what organizations are recipients?

AG.1: The WIC has not awarded grants for construction-specific workforce services previously. DOES funds several pre-apprenticeship and other training programs in the construction industry, but these initiatives utilize different program models. The program models specified in this RFA are informed by other successful programs in the District and nationwide, but have been tailored to meet specific needs identified during background research and interviews conducted in the development of this RFA, as well as ensure programming complements existing District-supported efforts.


QG.2: Who in the DOES planned Center for Construction careers can we work with on defining an adequate apprenticeship strategy?

AG.2: DOES expects to launch the Center for Construction Careers in the fall of 2014. Grantees will be required to coordinate with Center staff as specified for each program model in the RFA. However, applicants may not seek assistance from, or coordinate with, DOES staff in applying for this solicitation. Applicants should clearly define their own strategies for helping participants advance into and/or retain construction apprenticeship and other career opportunities based on the requirements specified for the program model they are applying for in the RFA.


QG.3: Was an outside organization solicited to create the scope of work?

AG.3: The RFA was created by WIC staff in consultation with DOES. WIC staff conducted interviews and/or site visits with over 40 stakeholders in the construction industry, including employers (general contractors, subcontractors, and developers), industry trade organizations, organized labor organizations (including apprenticeship sponsors), job training providers, and government officials with roles related to the industry in designing this RFA; as well as significant research on national best practices in workforce development.


QG.4: Can you elaborate on the DOES referral process? How frequently can a grantee expect referred clients? How many clients are typically referred at a time? How might this impact plans for program cohorts?

QG.5: Is DOES responsible for screening, eligibility determination, and educational assessment (CASAS, WorkKeys, or similar testing that reports an individual’s educational functioning levels)? Do grantees need to have staff in place to conduct screening and assessment, or will that function be fulfilled entirely by DOES? 

QG.6: Will DOES process individuals referred from grantees for eligibility and possible participation in the grantee’s program? Will all participants in either program model be required to register with DOES in order to be counted as a participant under this grant; and will grantees be able to register and certify them on their own or only through DOES?

AG.4-6: Grantees awarded through this solicitation will work closely with the Center for Construction Careers to identify eligible and well qualified participants and ensure that funded services are aligned with the needs of jobseekers accessing the Center. DOES has already engaged hundreds of potential program participants through their existing Employer Services unit efforts, including through their work in registering individuals that have expressed an interest in DC-based construction projects with First Source agreements in DC Networks, as well as their work in recruiting DC residents for apprenticeship, step-up apprenticeship, and pre-apprenticeship opportunities. Through these efforts and the expanded intake and tracking systems planned for the Center, DOES has a significant and growing pipeline of jobseekers that are likely to be well suited to participate in activities funded through these grants and will be ready for referral. 

DOES will be the primary source of referrals for program participants supported under both program models in this RFA, and all program participants must be registered in DOES tracking systems by DOES staff to be eligible to receive program services under these grants. Grantees may also identify individuals that are eligible and well suited to participate in program activities on their own, and DOES may conduct screening and assessment for these referred individuals if appropriate. However, there is no guarantee that individuals referred to DOES will be assigned to a grantee’s program, and grantees will be responsible for providing services to any individuals that are referred from DOES and meet their program’s entry requirements.

DOES will be responsible for the following screening and assessment services to ensure participants are well suited for program participation:
· participant eligibility determination based on the criteria established in this RFA;
· drug testing;
· CASAS testing and determination of relevant academic and other credentials attained;
· candidate interview to ensure that the individual possesses the required career interests and aptitude to successfully enter into program services and advance towards journey worker and/or other skilled laborer career opportunities in the construction industry.


Grantees will not be required to carry out to these activities.  Applicants may identify additional assessments for their program that may be needed to ensure that participants will be able to successfully complete program activities and achieve outcome goals. Grantees may choose to devote some staff resources to additional internal screening and assessment efforts if they believe it will useful in delivering program services. Applicants should specify anticipated cohort enrollment timelines and numbers that will allow them to successfully meet program outcomes in their attached Performance Outcomes Form (Attachment C(1) or C(2) depending on program model.


QG.7: Phrases such as “the grantee will collaborate with DOES”, “work with”, and “coordinate with” are used throughout this RFA. Can you elaborate on what this process will look like?

AG.7: See answer AG.4-6 above toQG.4-6 for information on how DOES will work with grantees on referrals of participants and related services.

A grantee awarded under the Pre-Apprenticeship model will also work with the Center for Construction Careers to place program participants in eligible construction apprenticeship programs sponsored by construction firms, industry associations, and/or labor unions; or other career track opportunities. A grantee awarded under the Support Services model will also work with the Center to ensure job retention or advancement opportunities, such as acceptance into full apprenticeship; or follow-up placements in the event of job loss (when applicable) in apprenticeship, step-up apprenticeship, and other career track opportunities. DOES’s Employer Services unit already has significant relationships with DC-based construction projects that have First Source agreements in place, as well as all apprenticeship sponsors that are operating registered programs in the District. Through these efforts and the expanded placement services systems planned for the Center, DOES is working with a significant and growing number of employers to help them access a pipeline of well qualified District residents; and individuals that participate in program activities funded through these grants are likely to be well suited to complement these efforts. While the Center will work with grantees in helping them achieve required placement and retention (Pre-Apprenticeship model) or retention (Support Services model) outcomes, grantees may need to devote additional staff and resources to these efforts and will maintain sole responsibility for performance outcomes.


QG.8: Is there a list of contractors that have First Source agreements in place with the District, and if so, can applicants view a copy of this list?

[bookmark: _GoBack]AG.8: All of the District’s First Source agreements are public information, but there is not currently a single list of all active agreements that is publicly available. DOES will work with grantees that receive awards under this solicitation to share as much information as possible about relevant placement opportunities related to First Source agreements.



	
QG.9: Who are the construction industry representatives, and how were they selected?

AG.9: After the award of grants under this solicitation, the WIC will convene a Construction Industry Advisory Committee consisting of representatives from DOES, employers, labor unions, and industry associations that help guide the efforts of grantee(s) under this solicitation and provide input on the broader workforce system’s construction-related efforts. The Committee will assist in identifying current and future skill requirements, evaluating existing training capacity in the metropolitan area, and developing consensus on additional services that may be supported or facilitated through the Workforce Intermediary. The WIC will finalize this committee’s membership after awards have been made and share their identities with program stakeholders at that time.


QG.10: Will an extension to the due date be granted?

AG.10: No, the due date for this grant solicitation will remain Wednesday, July 23, 2014 at 4PM; and no applicants will be granted an extension. In the unlikely event of a District government closure or technical issues with the ZoomGrants system, the WIC may consider granting an extension for all applicants at its sole discretion.


QG.11: Can the grantee charge students a minimal fee for books?

AG.11: No, all participants served through this funding opportunity must provide their services to eligible District residents free of charge, and all program costs should be included in their budget submission.


QG.12: Can you explain how the soon after an invoice submission a grantee can anticipate receiving a payment? Can you elaborate on the invoice process?

AG.12: 100 percent of payments disbursed under these grants are based on successfully meeting performance outcomes. Grantees may bill the District on a monthly basis for all required outcomes achieved. Relevant supporting documentation must be submitted with monthly invoices to the District for all required outcomes achieved.

Payment amounts for each outcome achieved will be based on the terms of the RFA and the performance and payment plan submitted in grantees’ applications through Attachment C(1) or C(2) (depending on program model). Performance and payment plans are subject to final approval by the District, and may be negotiated prior to making a final grant award. 

Exact dates for the submission of grantees’ monthly invoices and supporting documentation to the District will be agreed to prior to final grant award, and the District will make payments on eligible required outcomes achieved after receiving invoices and approving supporting documentation. The District will pay the grantee on or before the 30th day after receiving an approved invoice, in accordance with the District’s Quick Payment Act of 1984, DC Law 5-164, effective March 15, 1985 (the Act), DC Code §§1-1171 to 1-1176 (Supp. 1985).


QG.13: What do you anticipate to be the age range/ average age of participants in both the pre-apprenticeship and support services models?

AG.13:  The RFA specifies that jobseekers must be 18 years of age or older for participation in services under both program models. Other than this requirement, there is no anticipated range or average age for participants.  Applicants may choose to define a more narrow age range for eligibility under their proposed program model, provided that they provide a rationale as to why their program is best suited to serve a more limited age range.


I. Background (pp. 2-5 of the RFA)
No questions related to this section received to date.


II. Program Models Overview (p. 5 of the RFA)
QII.1: Is it possible to award multiple grants under each model or are you legally bound to only select one awardee?

AII.1: Multiple grants may not be awarded under a single program model under the terms specified in this RFA. The WIC has elected to award up to one grant of up to $225,000 to only one applicant (or applicant organizations in partnership) for each of the two program models specified in this RFA - (1) pre-apprenticeship training and (2) support services.  Applicants may propose to deliver services under only one of these two models, and may only submit one application to provide services under this solicitation. Applications from partnerships of two or more organizations are permitted and encouraged, particularly if the organizations possess complementary strengths in providing the services specified in the RFA, though a lead applicant must be identified as the grantee for fiscal and performance purposes.


III. Pre-Apprenticeship Service Model (pp. 6-11 of the RFA)
QIII.1: Can time spent in a shop environment be considered as classroom hours? (These will not be hours spent on hands-on experience at a project site.)

AIII.1: Applicants applying under the Pre-Apprenticeship model must incorporate 120 hours of classroom time utilizing one of three U.S. Department of Labor endorsed curricula: Building and Construction Trades Department’s Multi-Craft Core Curriculum, National Center for Construction Education and Research (NCCER), or the Home Builders Institutes’ Pre-Apprenticeship Certificate Training (HBI-PACT). This training must also lead to a credential offered through the relevant curricula endorsing organization, as well as U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety & Health Administration’s OSHA-10 Hour safety training and certification and First Aid and CPR certifications. The 120 hours of required instruction should be delivered in a manner that is consistent with program requirements specified by the relevant curricula endorsing organization, and may include time spent in a shop environment if it allows participants to meet these requirements and gain relevant program credentials after completing program activities.


QIII.2: Can an apprenticeship program partner with more than one applicant?

AIII.2: Applications from partnerships of two or more organizations are permitted and encouraged, particularly if the organizations possess complementary strengths in providing the services specified in the RFA, though a lead applicant must be identified as the grantee for fiscal and performance purposes. There is no limit to the number of organizations that may apply in partnership, but applicants should clearly define the role of each organization that is part of a consortia of applicants and how partners will work together to provide services.


IV. Support Service Model (pp.11-16 of the RFA)

QIV.1: For program model 2 – Supportive Services, under Scope of Services, can you define what you are expecting for individualized case management?
AIV.1: The RFA requires applicants applying under the Support Services model to provide Individualized case management and other support services for program participants, provided for at least twelve months after enrollment as applicable. These services are intended to ensure that the individual needs of each participant are met, and to assist participants with common employment barriers that may be specifically related to construction industry employment and retention. 

The WIC has not defined a specific set of services needed to meet this requirement, but has instead requested that applicants propose a case management structure and range of support services that they believe will be most useful in supporting the retention and advancement of participants in apprenticeship or other career track opportunities; and noted that they should draw on experience from past programming administered by their organization in justifying the range of services they intend to offer. Applicants should clearly indicate how they intend to conduct case management, including their processes for assessing and determining the needs of individual participants, developing individualized training and employment plans and ensuring participants receive related services, and updating these plans and revising them if needed. Applicants are also advised to propose a set of services that they believe will provide participants with the support they need to succeed in the employment and training activities they are currently enrolled in, and provide a supporting rationale as to why their proposed services best meet their needs. While some support services may be provided through coordination with external entities, applicants must propose a set of key support services that they intend to provide directly or through a defined partnership that is clearly documented and accounted for in their program budget.


QIV.2: For program model 2 – Supportive Services, under Required Outcomes, there is a requirement that participants must complete at least ten days of program activities to be counted as an enrollment outcome. Is there an hourly requirement to count as an outcome as well (i.e. eight hours of programming to count as one day of participation)?
AIV.2: Applicants must successfully enroll at least 50 participants to meet required outcomes under this program model. Enrollment is defined as an individual that successfully completes the applicant’s assessment process (after coordination with DOES’s Center for Careers in Construction on referrals as applicable), is accepted into the program, and completes at least ten days of program activities conducted by program staff. There is no specific number of hours per day or total hours required to count towards the ten day requirement. However, the WIC expects that a grantee would engage participants in substantive activities that provide value and allow them to continue engaging with the program moving forward; and also requires that each individual counted as an enrollment for outcomes purposes sign a document confirming their participation in 10 days of program activities and intention to continue program services.


QIV.3: For program model 2 – Supportive Services, what type of adult basic education would grantees be expected to provide if participants have already been accepted into an apprenticeship program?
AIV.3: The RFA requires applicants applying under the Support Services model to provide adult basic education instruction that helps participants increase literacy and numeracy skills and/or English-language skills. Program participants with varying academic backgrounds are likely to be referred to a grantee operating under this program model. Some individuals may be participating in step-up apprenticeship or pre-apprenticeship programs, and may need assistance in meeting the specific academic requirements needed to pass entry exams and successfully participate in apprenticeship opportunities in the construction trades that they are currently focused on. Common academic requirements in these trades, which vary by trade, include a high school diploma or GED, successful completion of Algebra 1, minimum test scores in construction-related math, and computer literacy.  Some participants may already have been accepted into apprenticeship programs but may need additional instruction to move beyond apprenticeship entry requirements and acquire the academic skills needed to further advance in the industry. Applicants should clearly define their proposed adult basic education offerings and explain how they will meet the varying needs of likely participants.


QIV.4: Do Support Service applicants have to provide OSHA 10 training?

AIV.4: No, applicants applying under the Support Services model are not required to provide U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety & Health Administration’s OSHA-10 Hour safety training and certification; only applicants applying under the Pre-Apprenticeship model need to provide this component. The WIC anticipates that most participants referred from DOES under this program model will already have completed or have access to this instruction and certification. However, applicants may choose to support this training to the extent that it is needed.


V. Eligible Applicants (pp. 16-17 of the RFA)
QV.1: Can an interested vendor list/ list of attendees at the July 9th information session be created and disseminated to foster collaboration amongst various organizations?

AV.1: The WIC will not develop a list of interested applicants. However, applicants are free to discuss this solicitation with other organizations and may conduct their own outreach efforts to identify potential partners.

QV.2: Does the lead applicant have to offer a registered apprenticeship or be licensed with a higher education commission, or just at least one of the proposal’s applicants?

QV.3: If an applicant organization is the creator and administrator of one of the three U.S. Department of Labor-recognized pre-apprenticeship curricula that is required to meet the standards specified under program model 1 – Pre-Apprenticeship in this RFA, do they still need to offer a registered apprenticeship or be licensed with a higher education commission to be an eligible applicant under this solicitation?

QV.4: Would an applicant organization be eligible to apply under program model 1 – Pre-Apprenticeship if they do not offer a registered apprenticeship and are also not licensed with a higher education commission; but are a nonprofit with demonstrated effectiveness in providing the requested services and meeting the employment needs of the target population? For example, our organization:
· Is in partnership with an educational organization that is licensed in the District and currently offers our program using our instructors as part of their educational offerings.  Under the current grant the educational organization would offer academic instruction and our organization would continue to deliver the pre-apprenticeship training.
· Offers participants the opportunity to be placed in an apprenticeship sponsored by the Virginia Board of Contractors which has offered our PACT graduates 1000 hours of apprenticeship training.
  
AV.2-4:  The RFA requires applicants applying under the Pre-Apprenticeship model to meet at least one of the following requirements:
· offer an apprenticeship program that is registered with the District’s Office of Apprenticeship Information and Training; or
· be licensed to provide education and training services through the District Higher Education Licensure Commission, Maryland Higher Education Commission, or the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia.

There are no exceptions to this requirement, but if organizations are applying to this RFA in partnership, only one of the organizations in their consortia needs to meet this requirement. The lead applicant in a partnership does not need to meet this requirement, provided that a relevant Letter of Support (Attachment D) is included for an applicant partner that does meet this requirement; and that applicant is providing at least some substantive services related to the pre-apprenticeship training component of the applicants’ planned programming.


QV.5: Are government agencies allowed to apply for funds under this RFA?

AV.5: Some government entities, such as publicly supported institutions of higher education, are eligible to apply for grants under this solicitation; and this RFA does not explicitly prohibit any type of organization from applying. However, some District government entities may not be eligible to receive grant funds that are awarded through other District government agencies, including through this solicitation. Any District government entity that considers applying should check with their counsel in regards to their ability to legally apply for and receive grants funds from another District government agency through this solicitation.




VI. Reporting and Data Collection Requirements (pp. 17-19 of the RFA)
No questions related to this section received to date.


VII. Review Process (pp. 19-22 of the RFA) 
QVII.1: Will a primary applicant’s sub-applicant’s past performance be considered for purposes of the Past Performance evaluation criteria (for applications in partnership)?

AVII.1: Yes, the past performance of partner organizations that are not the lead applicant may be submitted and considered in the evaluation of an applicant’s Past Performance, provided that the application includes a clear role for the partner organization in delivering program services and the partner organization has affirmed this role through an attached letter of support (Attachment D). However, this performance should be relevant to the services that the partner organization will be providing under this solicitation, and provide evidence of the capacity of the overall team of partner organizations to successfully provide the services requested under this RFA.


QVII.2: What performance outcomes would the WIC consider to be successful in evaluating the proposed performance of applicants?

AVII.2: Applicants should propose a performance payment structure and timeline for when projected outcomes will be achieved that is feasible and consistent with their proposed program model, and may bill for performance outcomes accordingly if awarded a grant under this solicitation. Applicants may propose to enroll more than 50 participants, and are not required to have 100 percent of their participants achieve placement and retention/ retention outcomes in order to receive part or all of their eligible performance payments. As noted in Section VII. Review Process, applicants will be assessed on whether their performance outcomes are feasible, given planned program elements, and lead to substantial gains for participating jobseekers.


VIII. Application Process (pp. 22-26 of the RFA, incorrectly listed as Section VII)
No questions related to this section received to date.


IX. Application Instructions and Components (p. 27 of the RFA, incorrectly listed as Section VIII; includes questions related to ZoomGrants online application content)
QIX.1: On page 15 of the RFA it mentions the proposal should include a performance proposal. Can you please provide more detail regarding this particular component?

AIX.1:  Applicants must propose a monthly performance and payment plan in the table in Attachment C(1) or C(2), depending on program model, with projected outcomes to be achieved on a monthly basis for payment. Applicants should make projections on the outcome totals they plan to achieve each month under each required outcome and propose performance payment amounts for obtaining each outcome that are compliant with the criteria established in the Required Outcomes section for their program model. Applicants should clearly explain how their proposed program model will lead to the outcomes that they project, and demonstrate why their projections are feasible through their responses to other elements of the application.

Applicants may propose to enroll more than 50 participants, and are not required to have 100 percent of their participants achieve placement and retention/ retention outcomes in order to receive part or all of their eligible performance payments. As noted in Section VII. Review Process, applicants will be assessed on whether their performance outcomes are feasible, given planned program elements, and lead to substantial gains for participating jobseekers.


QIX.2: Regarding matching/ in kind (i.e. leveraged funds in an applicant’s budget proposal) – is there a specific number or percentage that the WIC is looking for? Could it be a 100 percent in kind match?

AIX.2: There are no specific leveraging/ funding match requirements or limits for this RFA, and applicants are permitted and encouraged to combine funding from other sources to support enhanced program efforts where possible.  If an applicant chooses to propose utilizing leveraged funds to support activities supported by this RFA, they should clearly describe the funding sources, levels, and planned use of these funds in their Budget submissions.  


QIX.3: Under what circumstances are Letters of Support required in applying to this RFA?

AIX.3: Letters of Support (template provided in Attachment D and in the Required Document Attachments tab in the ZoomGrants electronic application system) are not required for this RFA unless two or more applicants are applying in partnership. Applications in partnership are allowed and encouraged if they bring complementary strengths to program offerings. Letter(s) of support should be uploaded where requested under the Required Document Attachments tab in the ZoomGrants electronic application system to document each partnership; and applications should clearly indicate the roles of each partner organization in delivering program services.


QIX.4: In ZoomGrants, it looks like the box on past performance asks for similar info that is required on the attachments… can you clarify?

AIX.4: Question 14 under the Application Questions tab in the ZoomGrants electronic application system  asks applicants to “Describe your experience in providing the required services outlined in the RFA for your selected program model, including outcomes achieved and timeframes. Provide data and narrative on participants that entered and/or maintained apprenticeship. Provide information on the number of individuals served; program completion and credentialing outcomes, academic gains, and employment and earnings outcomes - especially as they relate to apprenticeship; as well as positive outcomes for employers.” Some of this same information is requested in the Past Performance form(s) (Attachment B) that applicants must upload to the Required Document Attachments tab in the ZoomGrants electronic application system. However, Past Performance forms (Attachment B) seek specific information on one program example of the delivery of similar services in one (1) of the last three (3) completed program years; while question 14 allows applicants to describe their past performance more holistically as it relates to their planned program offerings. These items are related though, and information provided on each Attachment B document uploaded should be referenced in an applicant’s response to question 14. Both components should provide complementary information and allow reviewers to adequately assess the applicants Past Performance as it relates to the Review Process specified in Section VII. of the RFA.

QIX.5: How do you save your work in ZoomGrants?  I only see "archive" and that didn't work.

AIX.5: ZoomGrants automatically saves your responses to each question as soon as you click your mouse away from the response area. Additional resources on navigating the ZoomGrants system can be found in the “Help” link near the upper right corner of each web page within the online application.


QIX.6: For operating budget, staffing, FTE’s- we have 4 organizations in our partnership- need lead applicant info only for operating budget?  Then staffing and FTE for the program to be funded?

AIX.6: For applications in partnership, applicants only need to identify relevant information for the lead applicant organization in response to Questions 6 (operating budget) and 10 (staff) in the ZoomGrants online application system. For Question 11 – “How many total FTEs will be allocated to this program?”, applicants should include staff from all relevant partner organizations in providing total FTEs, and should also provide additional detail on these staff and the organizations they are employed by in their attached staffing plan (see Required Document Attachments tab).


QIX.7: My question #2 in the ZoomGrants online application system will only allow me to copy in about 250 words not 1500 as indicated under the question response box.

AIX.7: The content limit for question #2 in ZoomGrants is 1500 characters, not words, which translates to roughly 250 words. We’re only expecting brief responses to some items, while allowing for longer explanations in other sections of the application.
1

